
 
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 

626 GENEVA STREET 
LAKE GENEVA, WI 

 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 20, 2018 - 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

Agenda 
 
   

1. Meeting called to order by Tom Hartz. 
 

2. Roll Call. 
 

3. Approve Minutes of the July 16th Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 
  

4. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this 
agenda, except for public hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 
 

5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. 
 

6. Downtown Design Review:  
 

a. Application filed by Thomas George, for a request to install an awning on the 
building, located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district at 741 W. Main 
Street, Tax Key No. ZOP00272. 
 

b. Application filed by Venture Investment Partners LLP, 751 Lake Geneva Pkwy, 
Lake Geneva, WI  53147, for a request to install an awning on the building, 
located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district at 201 Broad Street, Tax Key 
No. ZOP00267. 

 
c. Application filed by Carrie Casper, 483 W. South Street, Lake Geneva, WI 

53147, for a request to install on building signage, located in the Central Business 
(CB) zoning district at 647 W. Main Street, Tax Key No. ZOP00287. 

 
d. Application filed by Mellisa Todd W1385 Oakwood Rd Genoa City WI  53128, 

for a request to install an on building sign, located in the Central Business (CB) 
zoning district at 253 Center Street Suite #700 for the Geneva Hair Lounge, Tax 
Key No. ZOP00282.  

 
7. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Lake Geneva 

50120 LLC, 3000 Dundee Rd #408, Northbrook, IL 60062, for the proposed Indoor 
Commercial Entertainment Land Use that would allow for the Mod Pizza to be located at 



281 Edwards Blvd, Unit C, in the Planned Development (PD) zoning district Tax Key 
No. ZA297300001. 

 
8. Comprehensive Plan Application & Amendment Process: 

 
a. 120 Properties LLC, request to change the Future Land Use Map (Maps 5a Full 

Planning Area View and 5b Central City View) to designate Tax Key No. 
ZYUP00198 from the Rural Holding Land Use category, to the Planned Mixed 
Use Land Use category which can be found in the 2011 Lake Geneva 
Comprehensive Plan; for the property located on the north side of Town Line 
Road, west of Edwards Boulevard.  

 
b. Plan Commission Recommends Setting Public Hearing by Council. 

 
9. Conceptual Plan request for the property located at Tax Key No. ZYUP00198 for 120 

Properties LLC & Roger Wolff to improve approximately 12 acres of Tax Key No. 
ZYUP00198, for Copper Circle Apartment Homes that would allow the installation of 15 
6-unit dwellings. The conceptual plan review that has been submitted is the preliminary 
site plan for a future request. 
 

10. Conceptual Plan request for the property located at Tax Key No. ZSUM0001 & 
ZSUM0002. The conceptual plan request is for the Summerhaven Development of 
Phases II & III. This would allow for the construction and buildout of the remaining new 
Single Family dwelling units for the property located in the Planned Development (PD) 
zoning district, located on Lake Geneva Boulevard. The conceptual plan review is the 
step 2 of the Planned Development Process. 

 
11. Adjournment. 

 
 

 
QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate 

Accommodations. 

Posted 8/15/2018 
 
 



1 of 4 
July 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 16, 2018 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Hartz, Alderman Doug Skates, John Gibbs, Sarah Hill, Ted Horne, Ann Esarco, Michael 
Krajovic. Also Present: City Planner Slavney, City Attorney Draper, City Administrator Oborn, Building and Zoning 
Administrator Walling, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant Follensbee. 
 
Approve Minutes of the June 18th Plan Commission meeting as distributed.  
Esarco/Krajovic motion to approve.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 
hearing items. Comments will to be limited to 5 minutes.  
Speaker #1: Jeremy Kinsey, clarified his address, 928 Clover Street, for agenda item #8. 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence. 
Correspondence was received from Jeffrey and Beverly Leonard, Delaney Street Mercantile, 905 W Main St, Lake 
Geneva, in favor of the Public Library Conditional Use Permit for a monument sign with LED messaging display. 
Correspondence has been distributed to the Plan Commission and the City Council. 
 
Downtown Design Review 
 
6.a. Application filed by Crown Dominion Properties LLC, for a request to install siding on the exterior of the 

newly renovated business, at 623 W. Main Street, located in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax 
Key No. ZOP00290. 
Pete Juergens, N2689 Sunset Blvd, representing Crown Dominion, presented the request and brought samples for the 
Plan Commission’s review. 

  
Skates/Horne motion to approve the installation of siding and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
6.b. Application filed by Mohammad Kaid, 313 W. Summerhill Pl., Oak Creek, WI 53154, requests the sign 

installations for a Fro Zone business at 270 Broad St, located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax 
Key No. ZOP00244. 

 Mohammad Kaid, 313 W Summerhill Place, Oak Creek, presented his request. Zoning Administrator Walling said 
the sign is designed with corporate colors which are exempt from the Downtown Historic colors and the sign meets 
all standards of the City.  

 
Hill/Horne motion to approve sign installations, contingent on the approval of item #9 and include all staff 
recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
7.  Review and Recommendation of a Site Plan Review filed by Jim and Lynette Heimann, 2429 Ridgewood Ct., 

Aurora, IL 60502, to renovate an existing lakeshore landscaped area in conjunction with the newly 
constructed home at 620 S. Lake Shore Dr., located in the Estate Residential (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key 
No. ZA315600001. 

 Joe Valentine, 342 Dean St, Woodstock, IL, on behalf of Midwest Arbor Corp, landscaping company, presented the 
request. Skates asked if there would be an impact on people using the lakeshore path. Mayor Hartz asked if low or no 
phosphorous fertilizers could be used in regards to the water quality.  

 
Skates/Horne motion to approve the Site Plan Review and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 



2 of 4 
July 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

 
8. Review and Recommendation of a Land Division filed by Jeremy Kinsey, 928 Clover St., Lake Geneva, WI 

53147, to create a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 401 Host Dr. and to generate two 
individual lots for the property in the Planned Business (PB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZA163000003. 

 Jeremy Kinsey, 928 Clover St, presented his request for the property at 401 Host Dr.  
 
Gibbs/Hill motion to approve the CSM Land Division and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
9.  Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Mohammad Kaid, 313 W. 

Summerhill Pl., Oak Creek, WI 53154, to utilize the property as Indoor Commercial Entertainment, for a Fro 
Zone business at 270 Broad St, located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district Tax Key No. ZOP00244. 

 Mohammad Kaid, 313 W Summerhill Pl, Oak Creek, presented his request. Aldermen Skates asked how 
product would be delivered. Kaid stated deliveries would be to the front door. 

 
Hill/Horne motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Hill/Gibbs motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
  
10. Continuation of a Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Robert D. 

Larson Trust, 2403 Comstock Ct., Naperville, IL 60564, for the demolition and new construction of a single 
family residence and requests to utilize the Single Family–4 (SR-4) zoning, at 905 Bayview Dr., which is 
located within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZGB00005. 

 Anthony Osnotch, 340 Frost Dr, Williams Bay & Troy Wise, 938 George St, South Shore Custom Homes, on behalf 
of Robert Larson, presented the request. Wise stated the aggregate side setbacks are slightly reduced and the 2nd 
driveway will be eliminated from their proposed plan. Planner Slavney stated the red line on the plan represents the 
100’ setback requirement from the lake and all improvements will be done outside of the 100’ setback. Walling said 
the elevation height of 34’ is within the guidelines for this property. 

  
Krajovic/Skates motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Krajovic/Esarco motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
11. Continuation of a Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Robert D. 

Larson Trust, 2403 Comstock Ct., Naperville, IL 60564, for the installation and addition of a 100’ pier located 
at 905 Bayview Dr. Property, located within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. 
ZGB00005. 

 Michele Batz, Reed’s Construction, 2080 Ridge Dr, on behalf of Robert Larson, presented the request. Walling said 
their DNR approval has already be received. 

 
Krajovic/Skates motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Esarco/Krajovic motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit and include all staff recommendations and fact finding. 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
12.  Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Lawrence & Pamela Frankel, 1240 

Dolphin Bay Apt. 402, Sarasota, FL. 34242, for the demolition and new construction of a single family 
residence, and requests to utilize the Single Family–4 (SR-4) zoning, at 75 Hillside Dr., located within the 
Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZYUP00094E. 
Jeff Leeson, 2831 Ware Road, Rockford, IL, representing the Lawrence & Pamela Frankel, presented the request. 
Walling stated this property is not part of the Manor Association and does not fall under the architectural review 



3 of 4 
July 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

guidelines of the Association. Slavney verified the roof height and said the proposed home fits the height 
requirements of the City.  
Speaker #1: Cully Pillman, N1445 State Hwy 120, Lake Geneva, said the neighbor views will be impacted and asked 
how the ER-1 zoning can be changed so easily to SR-4 zoning. Slavney stated prior to the late 1990’s, all lake front 
properties were zoned for a minimum lot size of 9000 square ft. and SR-4 setbacks. In the late 1990’s, all lake front 
lots were zoned as 1 acre lots but allowed rezoning back to the previous setbacks and heights with a Conditional Use 
Permit. 
 
Speaker #2: Walter Goes, 1504 W Main St, directly north of the Frankel’s home, shared his opposition of the 
Conditional Use and zoning change to SR-4 setbacks.  
 
Speaker #3: Dr. Donald Adams, 1506 W Main St, shared his opposition of the Conditional Use Permit & height of 
35’.  Slavney stated the 35’ requirement is the maximum height in all single family districts so the proposed 
Conditional Use does not affect the 35’ height which is being proposed. Walling said the 35’ height is measured to 
the mean elevation and not the ridge of the house as shown on the plans, which is lower than what is permitted. 
Attorney Draper stated the Ordinance authorizes the use of SR-4 zoning for ER-1 districts. There is no need to show 
hardship. 
 
Speaker #4: Mary Farwell-Goes, 1504 W Main, shared her opposition of the Conditional Use Permit and asked if the 
house could be moved 15’ towards the street. 

 
Hill/ Esarco motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Skates recommended the neighbors should communicate with each other. Walling had concerns about the request to move 
the new house back 15’. Draper shared the new State mandate, stating if an applicant complies with conditions for the 
Conditional Use and there is no substantial evidence against the particular application, the city is required to approve it. 
 
Esarco/Skates motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit and include all staff recommendations and fact finding.  
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
13. Public Hearing and Recommendation of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Lake Geneva Public Library, 918 

W. Main St., to install a new Community Information Sign for the property located in the Estate Residential -
1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00348. 

 Emily Kornak, Library Director of the Lake Geneva Public Library, presented the request. Walling stated a 
Conditional Use Permit is needed for a changeable sign in the central business zoning district. Walling said the sign 
falls within the guidelines and will be a great informational sign for the community. 

 
Krajovic/Skates motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Gibbs/Skates motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit and include all staff recommendations and fact finding.  
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
14.  Annual Comprehensive Plan schedule and review of applications requesting amendments to the 

Comprehensive Plan. 
 Slavney explained the annual Comprehensive Plan process and time frame. Slavney said the Future Land Use Map 

shows the possibilities for future development. Applicants seeking Zoning Map Amendments have to be consistent 
with the Future Land Use Map. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 of 4 
July 16, 2018 Plan Commission Minutes 
 

a. 120 Properties LLC, request to change the Future Land Use Map (Maps 5a Full Planning Area 
View and 5b Central City View) to designate a portion of Tax Key No. ZYUP00198 from the 
Planned Neighborhood land Use category to the Multi-Family Residential land use category; for 
property located on the north side of Town Line Road, west of Edwards Boulevard.  
Slavney stated this parcel is currently zoned for Planned Neighborhood Land Use which requires a 
minimum of 60% of units to be Single-Family, a maximum of 25% of units to be Multi-Family and a 
maximum of 15% of units to be Two-Family. The request is to designate a portion of the parcel to be 
Multi-Family Residential Land Use. 

  The Plan Commission will continue to discuss this project at the August and September Plan Commission 
meetings. 
 

b. Plan Commission recommends approval of the Public Participation Plan process. 
Draper discussed the Public Participation Plan process and suggested having a workshop with the public 
and the developer to discuss the application before the Public Hearing. Slavney suggested using this 
particular request to understand how the residential balance policy is designed to work in detail and if 
there is a desire to adjust the residential balance policy, it could be a focus point for the 10 year Plan Up-
date, giving the city a year to consider amendments or significant changes to the policy.    

 
Skates/Hill motion to approve the Public Participation Plan process, including a direction for the City Planner to adopt a 
Resolution for the City Council which includes the elements from the 2014 Public Participation Plan memo and to include 
at least one Public Participation Workshop.  
 
Roll Call:  Hartz, Skates, Gibbs, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic voting “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
15.  Adjournment.  Hill/Horne motion to adjourn at 8:06 pm. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
        
/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install an 
Awning to the exterior of the building above the public right of way at 741 W. Main Street Tax Key No. 
ZOP00272.  
 
The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 
Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the Sherwin Williams 
color palette. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Awning installation request as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Thomas George 
3389 South Shore Dr 
Delavan, WI 53115 

Request: 
741 W. Main Street  
Downtown Design Review for Awning 
installation  
Tax Key No. ZOP00272 

Agenda Item #6A 







 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install 
Shutters & Awnings to the exterior of the building above the public right of way at 201 Broad Street Tax 
Key No. ZOP00267.  
 
The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 
Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the Sherwin Williams 
color palette. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Shutter & Awning installation request as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Venture Investment Partners LLP 
751 Lake Geneva Parkway 
Lake Geneva WI 53147 

Request: 
201 Broad Street  
Downtown Design Review for Awning & 
Window Shutter installation  
Tax Key No. ZOP00267 

Agenda Item #6B 









 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install two 
on building signs to the exterior of the building above the public right of way at 647 W. Main Street, 
Tax Key No. ZOP00287.  
 
The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 
Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Proposed sizes & colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the Sherwin Williams 
color palette. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the installation of the two sign requests as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Carrie Casper 
483 W. South Street 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
647 W. Main Street  
Downtown Design Review for Signage 
installation  
Tax Key No. ZOP00287 

Agenda Item #6C 









 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to install an on 
building sign to the exterior of the building above the public right of way at 253 Center Street, Suite 
#700 Tax Key No. ZOP00282.  
 
The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to the 
Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  
 
Proposed sizes & colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 
 
Staff Recommendations:  
The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors color palette. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the installation of the sign requests as submitted. 

Applicant: 
Melissa Todd 
W1385 Oakwood Rd 
Genoa City, WI 53128 

Request: 
253 Center Street  Suite #700 
Downtown Design Review for Signage 
installation  
Tax Key No. ZOP00282 

Agenda Item #6D 









 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description of Proposed Conditional Uses: 

The applicant is submitting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the request to conduct a Mod 
Pizza facility at 281 Edwards Blvd, Unit C, which is an Indoor Commercial Entertainment land use. 

The City reviews all Conditional Use Permits for this land use. The applicants have also submitted a 
request for the downtown review of the signage earlier on the agenda for this property. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review: 

The proposed conditional use is fully consistent with the requirements of the Municipal Ordinance. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

Applicant: 
Lake Geneva 50120 LLC 
3000 Dundee Rd #408 
Northbrook, IL 60062 

Request: Mod Pizza Conditional Use Permit 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment 
281 Edwards Blvd, Unit C 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Tax Key No. ZA297300001 
 

Agenda Item: 7 



 2

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 
and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 



 3

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 
 
 





















































 

May 17, 2017   Page 2 

City of Lake Geneva 

2018 Annual Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process 

Activity May June July August Sept. Oct. 

Plan Commission Announces the 
Opening of the Plan Amendment 
Process, and Reviews the Draft 
Public Participation Plan 

May 21  

 

   

City Clerk Accepts Plan 
Amendment Applications 

May 22 - June 29 
 

   

Plan Commission Recommends 
Adoption of the Public 
Participation Plan 

 

June 18 

 

   

Council Adopts Public 
Participation Plan 

 
June 25     

Plan Commission Reviews Plan 
Amendment Applications 
(Requests & Staff Analysis 
included in Plan Comm. Packet.) 

 

 July 16 Aug. 20   

Plan Commission Recommends 
Setting Public Hearing by 
Council 

 

  Aug. 20   

Council Sets Public Hearing 
(applications frozen)  

 
 

 
Aug. 27   

City Clerk Distributes Requested 
Plan Amendments to 
Surrounding and Overlapping 
Jurisdictions 

 

 

 

Aug. 29   

Public Review Period 
(Newspaper published Wed.) 

 
 

 
 Sept. 5 - Oct. 14 

Joint City Council and Plan 
Commission Meeting 
1. Council Holds Public Hearing 

2. Plan Commission Adopts     
Resolution Recommending Plan 
Amendments 

 

 

 

  Oct. 15 

Council Adopts Ordinance on 
Recommended Plan 
Amendments 

 

 

 

  Oct. 22 

City Clerk Distributes Amended 
Plan to Surrounding and 
Overlapping Jurisdictions 

 

 

 

  

After 
Adop-
tion 

 

 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting the conceptual renditions for a proposed development for the south western 
portion of Tax Key No. ZYUP00198.  This parcel is located on the north side of Townline Rd and west 
of Edwards Blvd. 
 
The project would utilize approximately 12 acres to include the construction of 15 6-unit buildings and 
amenities for storm water, clubhouse with pool, and easements to allow for bike/pedestrian trails along 
the entire west property line and a proposed east connection to the undeveloped remainder of land. The 
development is being proposed entirely as a private road for this project. 
 
The applicant have met with staff for an initial review in which staff identified items of concerns for 
ingress and egress due to the topography which may require a right in right out only as what was 
required on the south of the Townline Rd for Cumberland Tr.  
 
 Staff Recommendations:  
Staff does not have recommendations at this time; this is a conceptual review submittal by the applicant. 

Applicant: 
Roger Wolff 
751 Lake Geneva Pkwy 
Lake Geneva, WI 53115 

Request: Preliminary Conceptual Review  
Copper Circle 15 - 6-unit Development 
Tax Key No. ZYUP00198 

Agenda Item #9 



Townline Rd. & Edwards Blvd./ Hwy 120 Lake Geneva, WI

ISSUED: 2018.07.27

0 100' 200' 400'

4

5

6

10

1

2

3 SITE SUMMARY
+/- 12.24 TOTAL ACRES

15, 6 UNIT BUILDINGS

90 APARTMENT UNITS TOTAL

1 GARAGE SPACE PER UNIT

1 PARKING SPACE IN

DRIVEWAY APRON PER UNIT

2+ PARKING SPACES/UNIT

+/-40 GUEST PARKING SPACES- T O W N L I N E   R O A D -

- W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 1

20
 -

- E
D

W
A

R
D

S
 B

LV
D

. -

- P A R K   D R I V E -

STORM
WATER
POND

7

8

9
11

12

13

14

15

STORM
WATER
POND

STORM
WATER
POND

AMENITY
CLUBHOUSE /
LEASING OFFICE
AND PARKING

EXISTING
WOODED AREA
BOUNDARY

POTENTIAL
AREA FOR
GUEST PARKING
TYP.



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  August 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting the conceptual renditions for a proposed development for the remainder of 
the property for Phases II & III of Tax Key No. ZSUM0001 & ZSUM0002.  This parcel is located on 
the west side of Lake Geneva Blvd. 
 
The project would finish the proposed development and the construction of single family homes and 
amenities for storm water, pool house with pool, and easements to allow utility connections. The 
development is being proposed entirely as a private road for this project. 
 
The applicant have met with staff for an initial review in which staff identified items of concerns for 
easements and connections to also address abandonment of existing extra water connections. 
 
 Staff Recommendations:  
Staff does not have recommendations at this time; this is a conceptual review submittal by the applicant. 

Applicant: 
McMurr II, LLC 
351 W. Hubbard, Suite 610 
Chicago, WI 53115 

Request: Planned Development 
Step 2 Conceptual Review  
Summerhaven Phase II & III Development 
Tax Key No. ZSUM0001 & ZSUM0002 

Agenda Item #10 





CITY OF LAKE GENEVA PROCEDURAL CHECKLIST FOR: 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT REVIEW AND APPROVAL (Per Section 98-914) 
 
This form should be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a planned 
development and

 

 by the City to process said application.  Parts II, III, V, and VII should be used by the 
Applicant to submit a complete application; Parts I - VIII should be used by the City as a guide when 
processing said application. 

I. RECORDATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 
 
____ Pre-submittal staff meeting scheduled: 
 
 Date of Meeting: __________     Time of Meeting: __________ Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
 Follow-up pre-submittal staff meetings scheduled for: 
 
____ Date of Meeting: __________     Time of Meeting: __________ Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Date of Meeting: __________     Time of Meeting: __________ Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Date of Meeting: __________     Time of Meeting: __________ Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Date of Meeting: __________     Time of Meeting: __________ Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Application form filed with Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Application fee of $ ____ received by Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Reimbursement of professional consultant costs agreement executed: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
II. APPLICATION SUBMITTAL PACKET REQUIREMENTS 
PD PROCESS STEP 1: PRE-APPLICATION 
 
Step 1 does not require the submittal of an application packet; however, Steps 2-4 do require submittal of all 
draft and final application packets to the Zoning Administrator prior to Plan Commission review. 
 
 ____ A. Contact the Zoning Administrator to place an informal discussion item for the PD on 

the Plan Commission agenda.  No details beyond the name of the Applicant and the 
identification of the discussion item as a PD is required to be given in the agenda. 

 
 ____ B. Engage in an informal discussion with the Plan Commission regarding the potential 

PD.  Appropriate topics may include: location, project themes and images, general mix 
of dwelling unit types and/or land uses being considered, approximate residential 
densities, and non-residential intensities, general treatment of natural features, general 
relationship to nearby properties and public streets, and relationship to the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
 NOTE: Points of discussion and conclusions reached in this stage of the process shall in no way be 

binding upon the Applicant or the City, but should be considered as the informal, non-
binding basis for proceeding to the next step. 



APPLICATION SUBMITTAL PACKET REQUIREMENTS 
PD PROCESS STEP 2: CONCEPT PLAN 
 
Prior to submitting the 20 complete applications as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall 
submit 5 initial draft application packets for staff review, followed by one revised draft final application packet 
based upon staff review and comments. 
 
Initial Packet (5 Copies to Zoning Administrator) Date: ________ by: _____ 
  ⇓   Draft Final Packet (1 Copy to Zoning Administrator) Date: ________ by: _____ 
 ⇓ 
____ ____ A. Provide Zoning Administrator with draft PD Concept Plan Submittal Packet for 

determination of completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan 
Commission agenda for Concept Plan review.  The submittal packet shall contain all of 
the following items: 

 
  ____ (1) A location map

 

 of the subject property and its vicinity at 11" x 17", as depicted 
on a copy of the City of Lake Geneva Land Use Plan Map; 

  ____ (2 ) A general written description
    ____ General project themes and images; 

 of proposed PD including: 

    ____ The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses; 
    ____ Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as 

described by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious 
surface area ratio; 

    ____ The general treatment of natural features; 
    ____ The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets; 
    ____ The general relationship of the project to the Master Plan; 
    ____ An initial draft list of zoning standards which will not be met by the 

proposed PD and the location(s) in which they apply and, a complete 
list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PD and the location(s) in which they apply.  Essentially, the purpose of 
this listing shall be to provide the Plan Commission with information 
necessary to determine the relative merits of the project in regard to 
private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to the mitigation of 
potential adverse impacts created by design flexibility; and, 

 
  ____ (3) A written description
     requirements of the underlying zoning district, in the following order: 

 of potentially requested exemption from the  

     1. Land Use Exemptions; 
     2. Density and Intensity Exemptions; 
     3. Bulk Exemptions; 
     4. Landscaping Exceptions; 
     5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions; 
 
  ____ (4) A conceptual plan drawing

 

 (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the 
general location of major public streets and/or private drives.  The Applicant 
may submit copies of a larger version of the plan in addition to the 11" x 17" 
reduction. 

 



FINAL APPLICATION PACKET INFORMATION 
PD PROCESS STEP 2: CONCEPT PLAN 
 
____ Receipt of 5 full scale copies in blueline or blackline 
 of complete Final Application Packet by Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Receipt of 20 reduced (8.5" by 11" text and 11" x 17" graphics) 
 copies of complete Final Application Packet by Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____   A digital copy of Final Application Packet shall be emailed to the  
 Building and Zoning Department upon submittal deadline.        Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Certification of complete Final Application Packet and 
              required copies to the Zoning Administrator by City Clerk: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
PD STEP 3: GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (GDP) 
 
Prior to submitting the 20 complete applications as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall 
submit 5 initial draft application packets for staff review, followed by one revised draft final application packet 
based upon staff review and comments. 
 
Initial Packet (5 Copies to Zoning Administrator) Date: ________ by: _____ 
  ⇓   Draft Final Packet (1 Copy to Zoning Administrator) Date: ________ by: _____ 
 ⇓ 
 
____ ____ A. Provide Zoning Administrator with a draft GDP Submittal Packet for determination of 

completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission agenda for 
GDP review.  The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items: 

 
  ____ (1) A location map

 

 of the subject property and its vicinity at 11" x 17", as depicted 
on a copy of the City of Lake Geneva Land Use Plan Map; 

  ____ (2) A map of the subject property
    ____ Showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the subject 

property; 

 for which the PD is proposed: 

    ____ Referenced to a list of the names and addresses of the owners of all lands 
on said map as the same appear on the current records of the Register 
of Deeds of Walworth County (as provided by the City of Lake 
Geneva); 

    ____ Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its 
environs, and the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control;  

     ____ Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier; 
    ____ Map size of 11" x 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 

feet; 
    ____ All lot dimensions of the subject property provided; 
    ____ Graphic scale and north arrow provided. 
 
  ____ (3) A general written description
    ____ General project themes and images; 

 of proposed PD including: 

    ____ The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses; 
    ____ Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as 

described by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious 
surface area ratio; 

    ____ The general treatment of natural features; 
    ____ The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets; 
    ____ The general relationship of the project to the Master Plan, 
    ____ A statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed.  This shall 

identify barriers that the Applicant perceives in the form of 
requirements of standard zoning districts and opportunities for 
community betterment the Applicant suggests are available through 
the proposed PD zoning. 

     



    ____ A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the 
proposed PD and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete 
list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PD and the location(s) in which they apply shall be identified.  
Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the Plan 
Commission with information necessary to determine the relative 
merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, 
and in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by 
design flexibility. 

    ____ A written description of potentially requested exemption from the 
requirements of the underlying zoning district, in the following order: 

     1. Land Use Exemptions; 
     2. Density and Intensity Exemptions; 
     3. Bulk Exemptions; 
     4. Landscaping Exceptions; 
     5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions. 
 
  ____ (4) A General Development Plan Drawing

    ____ A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout 
and the general location of major public streets and/or private drives.  
The Applicant may submit copies of a larger version of the plan in 
addition to the 11" x 17" reduction; 

 at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (11" x 
17" reduction shall also be provided by Applicant) of the proposed project 
showing at least the following information in sufficient detail to make an 
evaluation against criteria for approval: 

    ____ Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities and 
specifically describing those that are to be reserved or dedicated for 
public acquisition and use; 

    ____ Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the 
approximate areas of large development lots and pads, 
density/intensity of various parts of the development, floor area ratio, 
impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface area ratio of 
various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by the 
Plan Commission or City Council; and 

    ____ Notations relating the written information provided in (3), above to 
specific areas on the GDP Drawing. 

 
  ____ (5) General conceptual landscaping plan

 

 for subject property, noting approximate 
locations of foundation, street, yard and paving, landscaping, and the 
compliance of development with all landscaping requirements of this 
Ordinance (except as noted in the listing of exceptions) and the use of extra 
landscaping and bufferyards; 

  ____ (6) A general signage plan
    ____Project identification signs; 

 for the project, including all: 

    ____Concepts for public fixtures and signs (street light fixtures and/or poles 
or street sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from 
City standards or common practices; 

 



  ____ (7) Written justification

 

 for the proposed Planned Development.  (See Section 98-905 
for requirements of the conditional use procedure.) 

 
FINAL APPLICATION PACKET INFORMATION 
PD STEP 3: GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (GDP) 
 
The process for review and approval of the PD shall be identical to that for conditional use permits per 
Section 98-905 of the Zoning Ordinance and (if land is to be divided) to that for preliminary and final plats of 
subdivision per the Municipal Code.  All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five 
years of final City Council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall be permitted.  
The City Council may extend this five years period by up to five additional years via a majority vote following 
a public hearing. 
 
____ Receipt of 5 full scale copies in blueline or blackline 
 of complete Final Application Packet by Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Receipt of 20 reduced (8.5" by 11" text and 11" x 17" graphics) 
 copies of complete Final Application Packet by Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____   A digital copy of Final Application Packet shall be emailed to the  
 Building and Zoning Department upon submittal deadline.        Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Certification of complete Final Application Packet and 
              required copies to the Zoning Administrator by City Clerk: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Class 2 Legal Notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Class 2 Legal Notice published on _______________ and _______________ by: _____ 
 
 
 
 
APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
PD STEP 4: PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN (PIP) 
 
Prior to submitting the 20 complete applications as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall 
submit 5 initial draft application packets for staff review, followed by one revised draft final application packet 
based upon staff review and comments. 
 
Initial Packet (5 Copies to Zoning Administrator) Date: ________ by: _____ 
  ⇓   Draft Final Packet (1 Copy to Zoning Administrator) Date: ________ by: _____ 
 ⇓ 
____ ____ A. After the effective date of the rezoning to PD/GDP, the Applicant may file an application 

for the proposed PIP with the Plan Commission.  This submittal packet shall contain 
the following items, prior to its acceptance by the Zoning Administrator and placing 
the item on the Plan Commission agenda for PIP review. 

 
  ____ (1) A location map of the subject property and its vicinity at 11" x 17", as depicted on 

a copy of the City of Lake Geneva Land Use Plan Map; 



 
  ____ (2) A map of the subject property
    ____ Showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the subject 

property; 

 for which the PD is proposed: 

    ____ Referenced to a list of the names and addresses of the owners of all lands 
on said map as the same appear on the current records of the Register 
of Deeds of Walworth County (as provided by the City of Lake 
Geneva); 

    ____ Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its 
environs, and the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control;  

     ____ Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier; 
    ____ Map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 

feet; 
    ____ All lot dimensions of the subject property provided; 
    ____ Graphic scale and north arrow provided. 
 
  ____ (3) A general written description
    ____ Specific project themes and images; 

 of proposed PIP including: 

    ____ The specific mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses; 
    ____ Specific residential densities and non-residential intensities as described 

by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area 
ratio; 

    ____ The specific treatment of natural features; 
    ____ The specific relationship to nearby properties and public streets. 
    ____ A Statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed identifying 

perceived barriers in the form of requirements of standard zoning 
districts and opportunities for community betterment through the 
proposed PD zoning. 

    ____ A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the 
proposed PIP and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete 
list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PIP and the location(s) in which they apply shall be identified.  
Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the Plan 
Commission with information necessary to determine the relative 
merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, 
and in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by 
design flexibility. 

 
  ____ (4) A Precise Implementation Plan Drawing

    ____ A PIP site plan conforming to all requirements of Section 98-908(3). If 
the proposed PD is a group development (per Section 98-208) also 
provide a proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat; 

 at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (and 
reduced to 11" x 17") of the proposed project showing at least the following 
information in sufficient detail: (See following page) 

    ____ Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities specifically 
describing those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public 
acquisition and use; 

    ____ Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the precise 
areas of all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various 
parts of the development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio 



and landscape surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, 
and any other plans required by the Plan Commission or City Council; 
and 

    ____ Notations relating the written information (3), above to specific areas on 
the GDP Drawing. 

 
  ____ (5) A Property Site Plan
    ____ A title block which indicates the name, address and phone/fax 

 drawing which includes: 

      number(s) of the current property owner and/or agent(s)  
     (developer, architect, engineer, planner) for project; 
    ____ The date of the original plan and the latest date of revision to the  
    plan; 
    ____ A north arrow and a graphic scale (not smaller than one inch  
      equals 100 feet); 
    ____ A reduction of the drawing at 11" x 17"; 
    ____ A legal description of the subject property; 
    ____ All property lines and existing and proposed right-of-way lines  
      with bearings and dimensions clearly labeled; 
    ____ All existing and proposed easement lines and dimensions with a  
      key provided and explained on the margins of the plan as to  
      ownership and purpose; 
    ____ All required building setback lines; 
    ____ All existing and proposed buildings, structures, and paved areas,  
      including building entrances, walks, drives, decks, patios,  
      fences, utility poles, drainage facilities, and walls; 
    ____ The location and dimension (cross-section and entry throat) of  
      all access points onto public streets; 
    ____ The location and dimension of all on-site parking (and off-site  
      parking provisions if they are to be employed), including a  
      summary of the number of parking stalls provided versus  
      required by the Ordinance; 
     
    ____ The location and dimension of all loading and service areas on  
      the subject property and labels indicating the dimension of  
      such areas; 
    ____ The location of all outdoor storage areas and the design of all  
      screening devices; 
    ____ The location, type, height, size and lighting of all signage on the  
      subject property to include a photometric plan; 
    ____ The location, height, design/type, illumination power and  
      orientation of all exterior lighting on the subject property –  
      including the clear demonstration of compliance with  
      Section 98-707; 
    ____ All engineering requirements for utilities, site designs, etc; 
    ____ The location and type of any permanently protected green space  
      areas; 
    ____ The location of existing and proposed drainage facilities for  
      storm water; 
 
 



    ____ In the legend, data for the subject property on: 
      ____ Lot Area; 
      ____ Floor Area; 
      ____ Floor Area Ratio (b/a); 
      ____ Impervious Surface Area; 
      ____ Impervious Surface Ratio (d/a); 
      ____ Building Height. 
 
  ____ (6) A landscaping plan

 

 for subject property, specifying the location, species, and 
installed size of all trees and shrubs.  Include a chart which provides a 
cumulative total for each species, type and required location (foundation, yard, 
street, paved area or bufferyard) of all trees and shrubs. 

  ____ (7) A series of building elevations

 

 for the entire exterior of all buildings in the PD, 
including detailed notes as to the materials and colors proposed. 

  ____ (8) A general signage plan

 

 including all project identification signs, concepts for 
public fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street 
sign faces and/or poles), and group development signage themes which are 
proposed to vary from City standards or common practices. 

  ____ (9) A general outline of the intended organizational structure

 

 for a property 
owners association, if any; deed restrictions and provisions for private 
provision of common services, if any. 

  ____ (10) A written description

 

 which demonstrates the full consistency of the proposed 
PIP with the approved GDP. 

  ____ (11) A written description

 

 of any and all variations between the requirements of the 
applicable PD/GDP zoning district and the proposed PIP development; and, 

  ____ (12) Proof of financing capability

 

 pertaining to construction and maintenance and 
operation of public works elements of the proposed development. 

 
FINAL APPLICATION PACKET INFORMATION 
PD STEP 4: PRECISE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN (PIP) 
 
The process for review and approval of the PD shall be identical to that for conditional use permits per 
Section 98-905 of the Zoning Ordinance and (if land is to be divided) to that for preliminary and final plats of 
subdivision per the Municipal Code.  All portions of an approved PD/PIP not fully developed within five 
years of final City Council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall be permitted.  
The City Council may extend this five years period by up to five additional years via a majority vote following 
a public hearing. 
 
____ Receipt of 5 full scale copies in blueline or blackline 
 of complete Final Application Packet by Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 
 
____ Receipt of 20 reduced (8.5" by 11" text and 11" x 17" graphics) 
 copies of complete Final Application Packet by Zoning Administrator: Date: ________ by: _____ 



____  A digital copy of Final Application Packet shall be emailed to the 
Building and Zoning Department upon submittal deadline.        Date: ________ by: _____ 

____ Certification of complete Final Application Packet and 
    required copies to the Zoning Administrator by City Clerk: Date: ________ by: _____ 

____ Class 2 Legal Notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk: Date: ________ by: _____ 

____ Class 2 Legal Notice published on _______________ and _______________ by: _____ 



 

EXHIBIT A
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASES II & III CONCEPT PLAN 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PHASE II 

PARCEL 1: THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 36, TOWN 2 NORTH, RANGE 17 EAST, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY 
MAP NO. 754, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 28944 OF WALWORTH COUNTY 
CERTIFIED SURVEYS, SAID POINT LOCATED S 89DEG 31MIN 36SEC W, 733.28 FEET 
FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36 (T2N, R17E); THENCE N 
89DEG 38MIN 40SEC E, 89.98 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 37MIN 23SEC E, 90.50 FEET TO 
THE WEST LINE OF LAKE GENEVA BOULEVARD; THENCE N 01DEG 34MIN 47SEC 
W, 348.82 FEET ALONG SAID BOULEVARD TO THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF WELLS 
STREET; THENCE N 37DEG 55MIN 32SEC W, ALONG SAID STREET, 202.94 FEET; 
THENCE S 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC W, 239.56 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE S 00DEG 41MIN 12SEC E, 50.00 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 55MIN 11SEC E, 
134.92 FEET; THENCE S 89DEG 31MIN 07SEC W, 24.01 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 12MIN 
03SEC E, 16.91 FEET; THENCE S 88DEG 41MIN 15SEC W, 42.80 FEET; THENCE N 
86DEG 27MIN 48SEC W, 126.62 FEET; THENCE S 88DEG 58MIN 07SEC W, 199.39 FEET 
TO THE EAST LINE OF LAKE SHORE VILLAGE CONDOMINIUM; THENCE ALONG 
SAID CONDOMINIUM, N 00DEG 11MIN 05SEC W, 6.62 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE, N 
00DEG 47MIN 32SEC W, 187.44 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC E, 389.70 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 76,247 SQUARE FEET (1.75 ACRES) OF 
LAND, MORE OR LESS (end of legal description). 

Property Index Number: ZSUM 00001 



 

EXHIBIT B 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASES II & III CONCEPT PLAN 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PHASE III  

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4  AND PART OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, TOWN 1 NORTH, RANGE 
17 EAST, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY 
MAP NO. 754, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 28944 OF WALWORTH COUNTY 
CERTIFIED SURVEYS, SAID POINT LOCATED S 89DEG 31MIN 36SEC W, 733.28 FEET 
FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36 (T2N, R17E); THENCE S 
01DEG 33MIN 07SEC E, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 CSM 754, 129.35 FEET 
TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE S 01DEG 35MIN 49SEC E, 66.14 FEET ALONG SAID CSM 754 TO AN IRON 
PIPE STAKE FOUND MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 3 OF SAID CSM 
754; THENCE S 01DEG 31MIN 43SEC E, TO AN IRON PIPE STAKE FOUND AT THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID CSM 754, 128.13 FEET, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 
NORTH LINE OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NUMBER 4098; THENCE ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID CSM 4098, N 89DEG 51MIN 07SEC W, 113.85 FEET TO AN IRON 
PIPE STAKE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID CSM 4098 AND THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2820; THENCE ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID CSM 2820, N 89DEG 57MIN 18SEC W, 282.16 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID CSM 2820 AND THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 
14 OF GENEVA WOODS SUBDIVISION; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
GENEVA WOODS SUBDIVISION, S 89DEG 26MIN 58SEC W, 345.08 FEET TO AN IRON 
PIPE STAKE FOUND MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11 OF SAID 
GENEVA WOODS SUBDIVISION; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF GENEVA 
WOODS SUBDIVISION, S 89DEG 00MIN 57SEC W, 50.64 FEET TO A FOUND IRON 
REBAR STAKE; THENCE N 00DEG 46MIN 30SEC W, 323.66 FEET TO A FOUND IRON 
REBAR STAKE ON THE SOUTH LINE OF LAKE SHORE VILLAGE CONDOMINIUM; 
THENCE N 89DEG 53MIN 53SEC E, 207.84 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE STAKE FOUND 
MARKING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LAKE SHORE VILLAGE 
CONDOMINIUM; THENCE N 89DEG 55MIN 25SEC E, 103.47 FEET; THENCE S 06DEG 
43MIN 55SEC E, 226.04 FEET; THENCE S 89DEG 41MIN 51SEC E, 124.31 FEET; THENCE 
N 04DEG 56MIN 22SEC W, 161.61 FEET; THENCE N89DEG 38MIN 02SEC E, 310.88 
FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 33MIN 07SEC E, 64.31 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 40MIN 56SEC 
E, 30.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 201,115 SQUARE FEET 
(4.62 ACRES) OF LAND, MORE OR LESS (end of legal description).  

Property Index Number: ZSUM 00002 

AND 

LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 754, SAID SURVEY BEING A PART OF THE 
NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 1, T1N, R17E, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, WALWORTH 



 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN, AND RECORDED IN VOL. 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEYS AT 
PAGE 275 AS DOCUMENT NO. 28944 WALWORTH COUNTY RECORDS (end of legal 
description). 

Property Index Number: ZA 75400001 



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMERHAVEN 
OF  

LAKE GENEVA PHASES II & III 
 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT - CONCEPT PLAN  
Applicant: McMurr II, LLC, 

an Illinois limited liability company 
 

July 13, 2018 
 
  



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 2 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASES II & III CONCEPT PLAN 

NARRATIVE 
 
 
INTRODUCTION: 
 
  McMurr II, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (“McMurr II”), is the 
Successor Declarant of the Summerhaven development (“Summerhaven”), the owner of ten (10) 
of the units in Phase I thereof (“Phase I”), and all the lands composing Summerhaven’s second 
and third phases.  McMurr II has cleared Summerhaven of the piles of broken asphalt resulting 
from the demolition of a parking lot by an earlier developer, has cleaned out the storm water 
management ponds to restore their capacity, has altered the storm water drainage to avoid 
flooding neighboring property on the north boundary of Summerhaven, and has extended 
Summerhaven Drive to Lake Geneva Boulevard, paving the access for emergency vehicles to 
Summerhaven.    
 
  Phase I, approximately 8.04 acres, is zoned by the City of Lake Geneva (“City”) 
as PD, Planned Development Zoning District, under a Precise Implementation Plan that has been 
amended in 2014, 2017, and 2018 by McMurr II.  Phase I is under condominium ownership, 
subject to the Declaration of Condominium and the Plat of Condominium of Summerhaven of 
Lake Geneva Condominium, as amended by recorded amendments and addenda thereto 
(collectively, “Summerhaven of Lake Geneva Condominium”).  In Phase I, ten (10) duplex 
dwellings in five (5) buildings have been constructed, as well as three (3) single-family 
dwellings, with additional single-family units under construction.  Under the 2017 amendment to 
the PD for Phase I, McMurr II has committed to install the incomplete public and private 
infrastructure for the balance of Phase I, to construct the pool promised by the original developer 
of Summerhaven, as well as a pool house, and to install the final lift of asphalt for the Phase I 
private roads. 
 
  The public infrastructure (e.g., municipal water and sanitary sewer mains) and the 
private infrastructure (e.g., storm water management system, private streets, and public utilities) 
have been designed and almost fully installed with sufficient capacity to accommodate not only 
the thirty-seven (37) units originally approved for Phase I, now reduced to twenty-eight (28) 
units, but also to accommodate an additional forty-seven (47) units originally approved for the 
second and third phases of Summerhaven.     
 
  The PD, Planned Development Zoning District, zoning for Phases II and III of 
Summerhaven has expired, and the City has rezoned the phases to TR-6, Two-family Zoning 
District, which allows single-family dwellings as a permitted use.  Under the City’s 
Comprehensive Master Plan, the phases are planned as Two-Family/Townhouse Residential, for 
which the TR-6, Two-family Zoning District is recommended.   
 
  The ten (10) year period during which Phases II and III could be added to the 
Summerhaven of Lake Geneva Condominium as expansion units under the Wisconsin 
Condominium Ownership Act has expired.   



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 3 
 

 
  To restore the original vision for Summerhaven, to broaden the base of financial 
support for Summerhaven’s extensive private infrastructure, including, without limitation, the 
roads, the storm water management facilities, the pool and the pool house, and to provide quality 
infill development, McMurr II proposes to rezone Phase II of Summerhaven, more particularly 
described in the attached Exhibit B incorporated herein (“Phase II”), and Phase III of 
Summerhaven, more particularly described in the attached Exhibit C incorporated herein (“Phase 
III”), from TR-6, Two-family Zoning District, to PD, Planned Development Zoning District, 
using the TR-6, Two-family Zoning District as the base district under the Planned Development 
for both phases. 
 
  Phase II will be under condominium ownership, pursuant to a Declaration of 
Condominium and Plat of Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake Geneva II, consisting of four 
(4) single-family site condominium units, with Phase III designated as Expansion Area for up to 
twenty-three (23) additional single-family units (“Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake 
Geneva II”). 
 
    McMurr II proposes a cross-easement agreement between the condominium 
associations of the Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake Geneva and the Condominium of 
Summerhaven of Lake Geneva II, to share, maintain, repair and replace the private roads, the 
storm water management facilities, the pool and pool house, and other common amenities and 
private infrastructure used by all.   
 
  The properties surrounding Phases II and III are zoned PB, Planned Business 
Zoning District, to the north and east, principally along Wells Street; MR-8, Multi-family 
Residential-8 Zoning District, and SR-4, Single-family Residential-4 Zoning District, to the 
south.  The single-family use and the proposed density should fit well within the neighboring 
properties.  
 
     
CONCEPT PLAN REQUIREMENTS: 
 
1. Location map:  A Location Map, showing the location of Phases II and III on the City’s Land 
Use Plan Map, is attached as Exhibit D and incorporated herein.  
 
2. General description of proposed PD: 
a. General project themes and images:  A Site Plan of Phases II and III is attached as Group 
Exhibit E and incorporated herein.  Sample elevations and floor plans for one-story residences 
for Phases II and III are attached as Group Exhibit F and incorporated herein.  Two-story 
residences are planned, as well for Phases II and III.  The landscaping, signage, lighting, 
organizational structure, and the consistency of the GDP and the PIP for Phases II and III will 
not materially differ from those for Phase I, to make an integrated community. 
b. General mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses:  Only single-family residences are 
proposed for Phases II and III. 



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 4 
 

c. Approximate residential densities: (i) Dwelling units per gross acre: Phase II, less than 2.3 
units/acre; Phase III, approximately 4.7 units/acre; Phases II and III combined, approximately 4.1 
units per acre; (ii) floor area ratio: 25%; (iii) impervious surface area ratio: 40%. 
d. General treatment of natural features:  Phase II and Phase III include detention ponds that will 
serve not only their improvements, but the Phase I improvements, as well.  Open space in Phase 
II and Phase III will be treated much as open space is treated in Phase I. 
e. General relationship to nearby properties and public streets:  Access to Phase II and Phase III 
will be through the existing entrance to Phase I from Lake Geneva Boulevard.  Access may also 
be had through the current emergency vehicles exit/entrance also on Wells Street, which McMurr 
II proposes to construct and convert to a street in Summerhaven, and on which the Phase III 
residences will front.  The single-family residences of Phases II and III will relate well to the 
Phase I development, as well as the single-family development to the south, which has lots of 
nine thousand (9,000) square feet. 
f. General relationship of the project to the Master Plan:  The proposed single-family dwellings 
in a Planned Development with a TR-6, Two-family Zoning District, base, fits the Master Plan’s 
Two-family/Townhouse planned use for Phases II and III, with lower density. 
g. Initial draft list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed PD and the 
location(s) in which they apply and, a complete list of zoning standards which will be more than 
met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in which they apply, to determine the relative merits 
of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to the mitigation of 
potential adverse impacts created by design flexibility: 
 
McMurr II requests the following flexibilities from land use and bulk regulations for Phases II 
and III, the most significant of which have been granted in Phase I, to promote uniformity of 
development with Phase I, and to accommodate the number of single-family units sufficient to 
support the private infrastructure of Summerhaven: 
 
  a. Maximum gross density of up to 5.45 dwelling units per acre; 
  b. Fifty (50) foot-wide easements for the private streets (Ordinance: 
minimum 66- foot width); 
  c. Cul-de-sac length of seven hundred twenty (720) feet (Ordinance 
maximum: 400 feet);  
  d. Minimum front and rear eave width of six (6) inches for side of gables 
(Ordinance: 18 inches); 
  e. Side of front porch to side of adjacent front porch of twelve (12) feet, 
minimum side yard of six (6) feet (Ordinance: minimum dwelling unit separation of 12 feet, 
minimum side yard of 6 feet); 
  f. Units in Phase II and Phase III will range in size from approximately five 
thousand two hundred (5,200) square feet to approximately nine thousand sixty-five (9,065) 
square feet, to accommodate single-family dwellings in place of the duplex structures permitted 
under the TR-6, Two-family Zoning District.  By comparison, some units in Phase I are below 
seven thousand (7,000) square feet in size. (Ordinance: 9,000 square foot minimum); 
  g. Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR): 45% (Ordinance: 50%); 
  h. Maximum Building Coverage: 45% (Ordinance: 40%); 
  i. Minimum Lot Width: fifty (50) feet (Ordinance: 75 feet); 



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 5 
 

  j. Total of Both Sides, Lot Lines to House/Garage: twelve (12) feet 
(Ordinance: 15 feet or 0 ft. along common wall); and 
  k. Rear Lot Line to House or Garage: fifteen (15) feet (Ordinance: 30 feet). 
 
3. A written description of potentially requested exemption from the requirements of the 
underlying zoning district, in the following order: 
a. Land Use Exemptions:  None. 
b. Density and Intensity Exemptions:  See 2(g), above. 
c. Bulk Exemptions:  See 2(g), above. 
d. Landscaping Exceptions:  None applicable; residential only. 
e. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions: None applicable; residential only.     
 
4. Conceptual plan drawing:  See Group Exhibit E. 
 
If Phases II and III are zoned PD with a TR-6 Two-family base district, Phases II and III will 
need the following TR-6 Two-family Zoning District uses thereunder and will meet the 
following TR-6 Two-family Zoning District standards: 
 
a. Land Uses Permitted by Right: (per Section 98-202(2)) 
Single-Family - 9,000 sf lot:  Only single-family units are planned, with units in Phase II and 
Phase III ranging in size from approximately five thousand two hundred (5,200) square feet to 
approximately nine thousand sixty-five (9,065) square feet.  
Selective Cutting (per Section 98-206(2)(f)) 
Passive Outdoor Public Recreation (per Section 98-206(3)(a)) 
Active Outdoor Public Recreation (per Section 98-206(3)(b)) 
Public Services and Utilities (per Section 98-206(3)(e)) 
b. Land Uses Permitted as Conditional Use: (per Section 98-202(4)) 
Clear Cutting (per Section 98-206(2)(g)) 
c. Land Uses Permitted as Accessory Uses: (per Section 98-202(5)) 
1) Land Uses Permitted by Right: 
Private Residential Garage or Shed (per Section 98-206(8)(c)) 
Home Occupation (per Section 98-206(8)(j)) 
Family Day Care Home (per Section 98-206(8)(k)) 
Private Residential Recreational Facility (per Section 98-206(8)(o)) 
Drainage Structure (per Section 98-206(8)(r)) 
Filling (per Section 98-206(8)(s)) 
Lawn Care (per Section 98-206(8)(t)) 
Exterior Communication Devices (per Section 98-206(8)(v)) 
2) Land Uses Permitted as Conditional Use: None are requested.  
d. Land Uses Permitted as Temporary Uses: (per Section 98-202(6)) 
Contractor's Project Office (per Section 98-206(9)(c)) 
Contractor's On-Site Equipment Storage (per Section 98-206(9)(d)) 
On-Site Real Estate Sales Office (per Section 98-206(9)(f)) 
3. Regulations Applicable to Residential Uses: 
a. Residential Density and Intensity Requirements: 
1) Conventional Development 



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 6 
 

Minimum Zoning District Area: 9,000 square feet:  Units in Phase II and Phase III will range in 
size from approximately five thousand two hundred (5,200) square feet to approximately nine 
thousand sixty-five (9,065) square feet, to accommodate single-family dwellings in place of the 
duplex structures permitted under the TR-6, Two-family Zoning District.  By comparison, some 
units in Phase I are below seven thousand (7,000) square feet in size. 
Maximum Gross Density (MGD): 6.00 du/acre 
Minimum Landscape Surface Ratio (LSR): 50%  45% 
Maximum Building Coverage: 40%  45% 
Maximum Accessory Building Coverage: 10% 
b. Residential Bulk Requirements: 
A: Minimum Lot Area: 9,000 square feet (except for twin homes at 6,000 sq ft): Units in Phase 
II and Phase III will range in size from approximately five thousand two hundred (5,200) square 
feet to approximately nine thousand sixty-five (9,065) square feet, to accommodate single-family 
dwellings in place of the duplex structures permitted under the TR-6, Two-family Zoning 
District.  By comparison, some units in Phase I are below seven thousand (7,000) square feet in 
size. 
B: Minimum Lot Width: 75 feet  Fifty (50) feet 
C: Minimum Street Frontage: 50 feet 
Minimum Setbacks: (Note L: below, along zoning district boundaries.) 
E: Front or Street Lot Line to House: 25 feet, 40 feet for a lot adjacent to a street with an 
Officially Mapped right-of-way equal to or exceeding 100 feet 
F: Front or Street Lot Line to Garage: 25 feet, 40 feet for a lot adjacent to a street with an 
Officially Mapped right-of-way equal to or exceeding 100 feet 
G: Side Lot Line to House or Garage: 6 ft or 0 ft along common wall 
H: Total of Both Sides, Lot Lines to House/Garage: 15 feet or 0 ft along common wall  Twelve 
(12) feet  
I: Rear Lot Line to House or Garage: 30 feet  Fifteen (15) feet 
J: Side Lot Line to Accessory Structure: 3 ft from property line, 5 ft from alley 
K: Rear Lot Line to Accessory Structure: 3 ft from property line, 5 ft from alley 
L: Peripheral Setback: See 98-610(4)(b) along zoning district boundary 
M: Minimum Paved Surface Setback: 5 feet from side or rear; 10 feet from street 
N: Minimum Dwelling Unit Separation: 12 feet or 0 feet along common wall 
O: Maximum Height of Dwelling Unit: 35 feet 
P: Maximum Height of Accessory Structure: 15 feet 
Q: Minimum Number of Off-Street Parking Spaces Required on the Lot 
(Includes garage, drives, & all designated parking surfaces): 3 
R: Minimum Dwelling Core Dimensions: 24 feet by 40 feet 
S: Minimum Roof Pitch: 3 : 12 
T: Minimum Eave Width: 18 inches:  Minimum front and rear eave width of six (6) inches for 
side of gables 
c. Residential Landscaping Requirements: Not applicable for single-family. 
See Nonresidential Landscaping Requirements for Multi-family Residential:  Not applicable – 
single family residential only. 
d. Residential Performance Standards: (See Article VII) 
e. Residential Signage Regulations: (See Article VIII) 
 



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 7 
 

  McMurr II is preparing to submit the General Development Plan for Phases II and 
III and the Precise Implementation Plan for Phase II.  McMurr is also preparing to submit an 
Application for Land Division and a Declaration of Condominium and Plat of Condominium for 
the Condominium of Summerhaven of Lake Geneva II, as outlined above. 
 
  The PIP for Phase III will require further engineering and planning, and will be 
submitted later.   
 
  McMurr II will provide proof of financing capability, in the form of a 
performance bond, letter of credit or other surety, for the construction of additional public 
improvements to complete the public infrastructure for the balance of Phase I and for Phase II, if 
Phase II and Phase III are rezoned and developed as a PD, Planned Development Zoning 
District, through the General Development Plan and the Precise Implementation Plan for Phase 
II, and a General Development Plan for Phase III. 
 
  McMurr II believes that the rezone of Phases II and III to Planned Development 
will make Summerhaven a more viable and improved in-fill development for the City.   
 
 
  



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 8 
 

EXHIBIT B 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASES II & III CONCEPT PLAN 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PHASE II 
 
PARCEL 1: THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF 
SECTION 36, TOWN 2 NORTH, RANGE 17 EAST, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, 
WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY 
MAP NO. 754, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 28944 OF WALWORTH COUNTY 
CERTIFIED SURVEYS, SAID POINT LOCATED S 89DEG 31MIN 36SEC W, 733.28 FEET 
FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36 (T2N, R17E); THENCE N 
89DEG 38MIN 40SEC E, 89.98 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 37MIN 23SEC E, 90.50 FEET TO 
THE WEST LINE OF LAKE GENEVA BOULEVARD; THENCE N 01DEG 34MIN 47SEC 
W, 348.82 FEET ALONG SAID BOULEVARD TO THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF WELLS 
STREET; THENCE N 37DEG 55MIN 32SEC W, ALONG SAID STREET, 202.94 FEET; 
THENCE S 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC W, 239.56 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE S 00DEG 41MIN 12SEC E, 50.00 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 55MIN 11SEC E, 
134.92 FEET; THENCE S 89DEG 31MIN 07SEC W, 24.01 FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 12MIN 
03SEC E, 16.91 FEET; THENCE S 88DEG 41MIN 15SEC W, 42.80 FEET; THENCE N 
86DEG 27MIN 48SEC W, 126.62 FEET; THENCE S 88DEG 58MIN 07SEC W, 199.39 FEET 
TO THE EAST LINE OF LAKE SHORE VILLAGE CONDOMINIUM; THENCE ALONG 
SAID CONDOMINIUM, N 00DEG 11MIN 05SEC W, 6.62 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE, N 
00DEG 47MIN 32SEC W, 187.44 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 18MIN 48SEC E, 389.70 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 76,247 SQUARE FEET (1.75 ACRES) OF 
LAND, MORE OR LESS (end of legal description). 
 
Property Index Number: ZSUM 00001 
  



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 9 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASES II & III CONCEPT PLAN 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PHASE III  

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4  AND PART OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, TOWN 1 NORTH, RANGE 
17 EAST, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY 
MAP NO. 754, RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 28944 OF WALWORTH COUNTY 
CERTIFIED SURVEYS, SAID POINT LOCATED S 89DEG 31MIN 36SEC W, 733.28 FEET 
FROM THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36 (T2N, R17E); THENCE S 
01DEG 33MIN 07SEC E, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 CSM 754, 129.35 FEET 
TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1 AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
THENCE S 01DEG 35MIN 49SEC E, 66.14 FEET ALONG SAID CSM 754 TO AN IRON 
PIPE STAKE FOUND MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 3 OF SAID CSM 
754; THENCE S 01DEG 31MIN 43SEC E, TO AN IRON PIPE STAKE FOUND AT THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID CSM 754, 128.13 FEET, SAID POINT BEING ON THE 
NORTH LINE OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NUMBER 4098; THENCE ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID CSM 4098, N 89DEG 51MIN 07SEC W, 113.85 FEET TO AN IRON 
PIPE STAKE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID CSM 4098 AND THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 2820; THENCE ALONG THE 
NORTH LINE OF SAID CSM 2820, N 89DEG 57MIN 18SEC W, 282.16 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID CSM 2820 AND THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 
14 OF GENEVA WOODS SUBDIVISION; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
GENEVA WOODS SUBDIVISION, S 89DEG 26MIN 58SEC W, 345.08 FEET TO AN IRON 
PIPE STAKE FOUND MARKING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11 OF SAID 
GENEVA WOODS SUBDIVISION; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF GENEVA 
WOODS SUBDIVISION, S 89DEG 00MIN 57SEC W, 50.64 FEET TO A FOUND IRON 
REBAR STAKE; THENCE N 00DEG 46MIN 30SEC W, 323.66 FEET TO A FOUND IRON 
REBAR STAKE ON THE SOUTH LINE OF LAKE SHORE VILLAGE CONDOMINIUM; 
THENCE N 89DEG 53MIN 53SEC E, 207.84 FEET TO AN IRON PIPE STAKE FOUND 
MARKING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LAKE SHORE VILLAGE 
CONDOMINIUM; THENCE N 89DEG 55MIN 25SEC E, 103.47 FEET; THENCE S 06DEG 
43MIN 55SEC E, 226.04 FEET; THENCE S 89DEG 41MIN 51SEC E, 124.31 FEET; THENCE 
N 04DEG 56MIN 22SEC W, 161.61 FEET; THENCE N89DEG 38MIN 02SEC E, 310.88 
FEET; THENCE S 01DEG 33MIN 07SEC E, 64.31 FEET; THENCE N 89DEG 40MIN 56SEC 
E, 30.01 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  CONTAINING 201,115 SQUARE FEET 
(4.62 ACRES) OF LAND, MORE OR LESS (end of legal description).  

Property Index Number: ZSUM 00002 
 
AND  
 
LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 754, SAID SURVEY BEING A PART OF THE 
NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 1, T1N, R17E, CITY OF LAKE GENEVA, WALWORTH 



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 10 
 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN, AND RECORDED IN VOL. 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEYS AT 
PAGE 275 AS DOCUMENT NO. 28944 WALWORTH COUNTY RECORDS (end of legal 
description). 
 
Property Index Number: ZA 75400001  
  



T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 11 
 

EXHIBIT D 
SUMMERHAVEN – PHASES II & III CONCEPT PLAN 

LOCATION MAP 
 
  See attached. 
 
  





T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 12 
 

GROUP EXHIBIT E 
SITE PLAN 

 
 
  See attached. 
  









T:\M\McMurr, LLC\Summerhaven\2018 phase 2\off copy\PD-P 2 & 3\off copy\concept plan app - phases 2 & 3-5.docx Page 13 
 

GROUP EXHIBIT F 
SAMPLE ELEVATIONS & FLOOR PLANS 

 
 
  See attached. 
 














	1. 8 20 2018 Agenda
	3. 7 16 2018 Plan Commission Minutes
	6.a.741 W Main St Downtown Design
	741 W Main St Awning Downtown review
	741 W Main St Downtown Design

	6.b. 201 Broad St Downtown Design
	201 Broad St Awning Downtown review
	281 Broad St Awning

	6.c. 647 W Main St Downtown Design
	647 W. Main St Signs Downtown review
	647 Main St Sign

	6.d. 253 Center St Downtown Design
	253 Center St  Signs Downtown review
	253 Center St Sign

	7. 281 N Edwards Blvd Unit C CUP
	281 Edwards Blvd Mod Pizza CUP
	281 N Edwards Blvd Bldg 2 Mod Pizza CUP
	doc00994520180814160536
	doc00994620180814160601


	8.a. 120 Properties LLC Comp Plan Amendment Application Final
	doc01011820180816110713
	doc01011920180816110731

	8.b. Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process Calendar
	9. Copper Circle Apartment Homes Concept Plan
	Copper Circle Conceptual
	(1) Copper Circle Apartment Homes- Wolff Real Estate  07.27.18

	10. Summerhaven Development Phase 2 & 3 Concept Plan
	Summerhaven Conceptual
	Summerhaven Lane Phase 2 & 3 Concept Plan
	080318 app for zoning map amndt-signed
	080318 concept plan 1 of 2
	080318 concept plan 2 of 2





